BYLAWS OF

LAS COLINAS VILLAGE NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION, INC.

Section 1. Identification of Association

These are the "Bylaws" of LAS COLINAS VILLAGE NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION, INC. ("Association"), as duly adopted by its Board of Directors ("Board"). The Association is a corporation not for profit, organized pursuant to and under Chapter 617, Florida Statutes.

- 1.1 The office of the Association shall be for the present at 9350 Sunset Drive, Suite 100, Miami, Florida, 33173, and thereafter may be located at any place designated by the Board.
 - 1.2 The fiscal year of the Association shall be the calendar year.
- 1.3 The seal of the Association shall bear the name of the Association, the word "Florida" and the words "Corporation Not For Profit."

Section 2. Definitions

The terms defined in the Articles of Incorporation of the Association ("Articles") as well as in the Declaration of Protective Covenants, Restrictions and Easements for Las Colinas Village Neighborhood Association, Inc. ("Declaration") are incorporated herein by reference.

Section 3. Membership; Members' Meeting; Voting and Proxies

- 3.1 The qualification of Members, the manner of their admission to membership in the Association, the termination of such membership and the manner of voting by Members shall be as set forth in Articles V and XII of the Articles.
- 3.2 The Members shall meet annually at the office of the Association or at such other place within the State of Florida, in the month of November at such time and place as determined by the Board and as designated in the notice of such meeting ("Annual Members' Meeting"). The purpose of the Annual Members' Meeting shall be to hear reports of the officers and transact any other business authorized to be transacted at such meeting.

- 3.3 Special meeting of the members shall be held at any place within the State of Florida whenever called by the President or Vice President or by a majority of the Board. A special meeting must be called by the President or Vice President upon receipt of a written request from Members having the right to vote at least one-third (1/3) of the total number of votes entitled to be cast at such meeting.
- A written notice of all meetings of Members whether the Annual 3.4 Members' Meeting or special meetings, shall be given to each Member at his last known address as it then appears on the books of the Association unless specifically waived in writing by a Member prior to the required notification period as set forth below. In the absence of any specific address for a Member, the Association shall use the address of any Dwelling Unit owned by such Member. Such notice of an Annual Members' Meeting or special meeting shall be mailed to the said address not less than ten (10) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the meeting. Proof of such mailing shall be given by the Affidavit of the person who mailed such notice. The notice shall state the time and place of the meeting of members to take place within the State of Florida and the purpose for which the meeting is called. The notice shall be signed by an officer of the Association or reflect a facsimile of such signature. If a meeting of the membership, either Annual or special, is one which, by express provision of the Declarations or Articles permits or requires a greater or lesser amount of time for the mailing or posting of notice than is required or permitted by the provision of this Section 3.4, then the aforesaid express provision shall govern. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, notice of any Meeting may be waived before, during or after such Meeting by a Member or by the person entitled to vote for such Member by signing a document setting forth the waiver of such notice.
- 3.5 The membership may, at the discretion of the Board, act by written agreement in lieu of a meeting, provided written notice of the matter(s) to be agreed upon is given to the Members at the addresses and within the time period set forth in Section 3.4 hereof or duly waived in accordance with such Section. Unless some greater number is required under the Declarations or Articles, the decision of a majority of the votes cast by members as to the matter(s) to be agreed or voted upon shall be binding. Notice with respect to actions to be taken by written response in lieu of a meeting shall set forth a time period in which the written response is to be received by the Association.
- 3.6 A quorum for a meeting of the Members shall consist of persons entitled to cast at least a majority of all votes of each class of membership. If the required quorum is not present another meeting may be called subject to notice requirements, and the required quorum at the subsequent meeting shall be thirty-three and one-third percent (33-1/3%) of all votes of each membership. A Member may join in the action of a meeting by signing and concurring in the minutes thereof and such a signing shall constitute the presence of such parties for the purpose of determining a quorum. When a quorum is present at any meeting and a question which raises the

jurisdiction of such meeting is presented, the holders of a majority of the voting rights present in person or by "Proxy" (as hereinafter defined) shall be required to decide the question unless the question is one upon which an express provision of the Declarations or Articles requires a vote other than the majority vote of a quorum, then such express provision shall govern and control the required vote on the decision of such question.

- 3.7 If any meeting of the Members cannot be organized because a quorum is not in attendance, the Members who are present, either in person or by Proxy, may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. In the case of the meeting being postponed, the notice provisions for the adjournment shall be as determined by the Board.
- 3.8 Minutes of all meetings shall be kept in a businesslike manner and available for inspection by the Members at all reasonable times. The Association shall retain minutes for at least seven (7) days subsequent to the date of the meeting the minutes reflect.
- 3.9 Voting rights of Members shall be as stated in the Articles. Such votes may be cast in person or by Proxy. "Proxy" is defined to mean an instrument containing the appointment of a person who is substituted in the place and stead of the person or entity entitled to vote. Proxies shall be in writing signed by the person or entity giving the same and shall be valid only for the particular meeting designated therein and, if so stated in the Proxy, any adjournments thereof. A Proxy must be filed with the Secretary of the Association at least two (2) business days before the appointed time of the meeting in order to be effective. A Proxy may be revoked only by a separate written instrument filed with the Secretary of the Association prior to the time a vote is cast according to such Proxy. No person or entity other than an officer of the Association may hold more than ten (10) Proxies.
- 3.10 The voting interest of the Owners of any Lot owned by more than one (1) person, a corporation or other entity, or by one (1) person and a corporation and/or other entity, or by any combination of the aforesaid, shall be cast by the Owner, officer, partner or principal ("Voting Member") named in a voting certificate ("Voting Certificate") filed with the Secretary of the Association signed by all of the Owners of such Lot or, if appropriate, by properly designated officers, principals or partners of the respective legal entity which owns the Lot. In the alternative, a Proxy as to a particular meeting may be executed in the same manner as the Voting Certificate. If neither a Proxy nor a Voting Certificate is on file, the voting interest associated with a Lot where the designation of a Voting Member or execution of a Proxy is required shall not be considered in determining the requirement for a quorum or for any other purpose. In the event a valid Voting Certificate and a Valid Proxy are filed with the Secretary of the Association with respect to a particular Lot(s) which provide for different persons present at the meeting to vote for such Lot(s), the Voting Certificate

shall control and the person named as the Voting Member therein shall be entitled to vote for such Lot(s).

- 3.11 Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 3.10 above, whenever any Lot is owned solely by a husband and wife they may, but shall not be required to, designate a Voting Member. In the event a Voting Certificate designating a Voting Member is not filed by the husband and wife, the following provisions shall govern their right to vote:
 - (i) Where both husband and wife are present at a meeting, each shall be regarded as the agent and proxy for the other for purposes of casting the voting interest for each Lot owned solely by them. In the event they are unable to concur in their decision upon any subject requiring a vote, they shall lose their right to exercise their voting interest on that subject at that meeting, but will be counted for purposes of determining if a quorum is present.
 - (ii) Where only one (1) is present at a meeting, the spouse present may exercise the voting interest of the Lot without establishing the concurrence of the other spouse, absent any prior written notice to the contrary to the Association by the other spouse. In the event of prior written notice to the contrary to the Association by the other spouse, the vote of said Lot shall not be considered in determining if there is a quorum or for any other purpose unless such prior notice to the contrary has been withdrawn by a subsequent written notice executed by both husband and wife.
 - (iii) Where neither spouse is present, the person designated in a Proxy signed by either spouse may exercise the voting interest of the Lot, absent any prior written notice to the contrary to the Association by the other spouse or the designation of a different Proxy by the other spouse. In the event of prior written notice to the contrary to the Association or the designation of a different Proxy by the other spouse, the vote of said Lot shall not be considered in determining if there is a quorum or for any other purpose.
- 3.12 At any time prior to a vote upon a matter at a meeting of the Members, any Member may demand the use of a secret written ballot for the voting on such matter. The chairman of the meeting shall call for nominations for inspectors of election to collect and tally written ballots under the completion of balloting upon the subject matter.

Section 4. Board of Directors' Meetings

- 4.1 The form of administration of the Association shall be by a Board of not less than three (3) Directors.
- 4.2 The provisions of the Articles setting forth the selection, designation, election and removal of the First Board of Directors are hereby incorporated herein by reference.
- 4.3 Any person elected or designated as a Director shall have all the rights, privileges, duties and obligations of a Director of the Association.
- 4.4 The term of each Director's service shall extend until the next Annual Members' Meeting and thereafter, until his successors is duly elected and qualified or until he is removed.
- 4.5 A Director designated by Declarant as provided in the Articles may be removed only by Declarant in its sole discretion and without any need for a meeting or vote. Declarant shall have the unqualified right to name a successor for any Director designated and thereafter removed by it or for any vacancy on the First Board as to a Director designated by it, and Declarant shall notify the First Board as to any such removal or vacancy and the name of the successor Director and of the commencement date for the term of such successor Director.
- 4.6 The organizational meeting of the newly elected Board shall be held within ten (10) days of the Annual Members' Meeting at such place and time as shall be fixed by the Directors at the Annual Members' Meeting. No further notice of the organizational meeting shall be necessary, providing that a quorum shall be present at such organizational meeting.
- 4.7 Regular meetings of the Board may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of Directors. Special meetings of the Board may be called at the discretion of the President or the Vice President of the Association. Special meetings must be called by the Secretary at the written request of one-third (1/3) of the Directors.
- 4.8 Notice of the time and place of regular and special meetings of the Board, or adjournments thereof, shall be given to each Director personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph at least three (3) days prior to the day specified for such meeting. Any Director may waive notice of the meeting before, during or after a meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the receipt of notice by such Director.